ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 23, 2005
8:37 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Gene Therriaul t

Senator Hollis French

Senat or Gretchen Quess

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 70
"An Act relating to controlled substances regarding the crines
of manslaughter, endangering the welfare of a child, and
m sconduct involving a controlled substance; and providing for
an effective date.™

MOVED CSSB 70(JUD) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 129

"An Act relating to the wongful recording of a notice of
pendency of an action relating to title to or right to
possession of real property.”

MOVED CSSB 129(JUD) OQUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 126
"An Act relating to aquatic farmng; and providing for an
effective date."
MOVED SB 126 OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 70
SHORT TI TLE: CRI MES | NVOLVI NG CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES
SPONSCOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 21/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 23, 2005



01/ 21/ 05 (S) HES, JUD

02/ 23/ 05 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 23/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 23/ 05 (S) M NUTE ( HES)

02/ 25/ 05 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 25/ 05 (S) Moved CSSB 70(HES) Qut of Committee
02/ 25/ 05 (S) M NUTE ( HES)

02/ 28/ 05 (S) HES RPT CS 1DP 2NR NEW TI TLE
02/ 28/ 05 (S) DP: DYSON

02/ 28/ 05 (S) NR. GREEN, ELTON

02/ 28/ 05 (S) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD
03/ 22/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 22/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 22/ 05 (S) M NUTE (JUD)

BILL: SB 126

SHORT TI TLE: AQUATI C FARM NG
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STEDMAN

03/ 02/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 02/ 05 (S) JUD, RES

03/ 23/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 129

SHORT TI TLE: WRONGFUL FILING OF LI S PENDENS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) HUGG NS

03/ 03/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 03/ 05 (S) JUD
03/ 23/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

M. Dean Quaneli, Crimnal D vision

Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 70

Sergeant Tinothy Birt, Detective

D vision of Al aska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety

3700 East Tudor Road

Anchor age, Al aska 99507

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 70

M . Duncan Shackel fol d, Coach

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 23, 2005



Chugi ak Hi gh School
Eagle River, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 70

Ms. Barbara Brink, D rector

Al aska Public Defenders

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on SB 70

Ms. Debbi e Grundmann, Legislative A de
Senat or Huggins’ office

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 129

Ms. Ruth Ham | ton- Hesse, Assistant Attorney General
Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 129

M. TimBarry, Legislative A de
Senator Stedman’s office

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced SB 126

M. David Bedford, Deputy Comm ssioner
Departnent of Fish & Gane

PO Box 25526

Juneau, AK 99802-5226

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmented on SB 126

M . Roger Painter

Al aska Shell fish G owers Associ ation

No address provided

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 126

M. Lance Nel son, Assistant Attorney General
D vision of Natural Resources

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 126

Ms. Julie Decker
Sout heast Al aska Di ve Fi sheries Associ ati on

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 23, 2005



No address provi ded
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 126

M. Paul Fuhs, | obbyi st

PAC Al aska, LLC

519 Pittinger

Ket chi kan, AK 99901

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 126

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:37:54 AM Present were Senators
Hol l'is French, Charlie Huggins, and Chair Ral ph Seeki ns.

SB 70- CRI MES | NVOLVI NG CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES

8. 38: 36 AM

DEAN GUANELI, crimnal division, Departnent of Law (DQL)
proposed Anmendnent 1 to address the definition of the word
“ingestion”.

8:39:42 AM

Amendment

Senate Judiciary Committee March 23, 2005
Amendnent to CSSB 70( HES)
Page 1, line 13:

Del ete “ingestion of”

Insert in its place “ingesting”

Page 2, line 1: After the period following the word “state”
add:
“As used in this paragraph, “ingesting” neans voluntarily or

involuntarily taking a substance into the body in any nmanner.

8:40: 33 AM
SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT joi ned the committee.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 23, 2005



8:.41: 54 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to adopt Anendnent 1. There being no
obj ection, the notion carried.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked M. Guaneli to define affirmati ve defense.

MR. GUANELI expl ained the difference between affirmative defense

and regul ar def ense:
A regular defense is one that the state as prosecutor
has to disprove beyond a reasonable doubt. An
affirmative defense 1is one that the Legislature
generally felt the information to establish that
defense ordinarily is sonething that the defendant
has. The state may not have information to establish
that defense and it’s unfair to put the state to the
burden of proving or disproving beyond a reasonable
doubt. An affirmative defense is one that the burden
is on the defendant to conme forward, not beyond
reasonabl e doubt, but to establish that defense by a
preponder ance of the evidence.

8:44:.15 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. Q@uaneli if an affirmative defense nakes
a person guilty until proven innocent.

MR. GUANELI responded the state always bears the burden of
proving the essential elenents of the offense beyond a
reasonabl e doubt .

CHAIR SEEKINS comented that statutes are trending toward
putting the burden of proof on soneone else rather than the
st ate.

MR. GUANELI agreed and said affirmative defense should not be
routinely enacted in statutes. He added in any case involving
drugs where soneone dies; the burden of proof will be inpossible
for the state to neet.

8:47.:56 AM

SENATOR HOLLIS FRENCH agreed wth M. Guaneli and added the
state should not have to prove beyond a reasonable doubt in the
case of a drug manufacturer causing death to a person.

CHAI R SEEKINS interjected the discussion was inportant.

8:49: 26 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 23, 2005



SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to adopt Amendnment 2 on behalf of the
Depart ment of Law.

Amendment

Senate Judiciary Committee March 23, 2005
Page 1 of 2
Amendnent to CSSB 70( HES)

Page 2, line 10, through page 3, line 13:
Del ete sections 3, 4 and 5 entirely, and replace with

*Sec. 3. AS 12.55.125(c), as anended by section CCS SB 56,
is anmended to read:

(c) Except as provided in (i) of this section, a defendant
convicted of a class A felony may be sentenced to a definite
term of inprisonment of not nore than 20 years, and shall be
sentenced to a definite term within the follow ng presunptive
ranges, subject to adjustnent as provided in AS 12.55.155 -
12.55. 175:

(1) if the offense is a first felony conviction and
does not involve circunstances described in (2) of this
subsection, five to eight years;

(2) if the offense is a first felony conviction

(A) _and the defendant possessed a firearm used a
dangerous instrunment, or caused serious physi cal

injury or death during the conm ssion of the offense,

or knowi ngly directed the conduct constituting the

offense at a unifornmed or otherwise clearly identified

peace officer, fire fighter, correctional enployee,
energency nedi cal technician, paranedic, anbul ance
attendant, or other energency responder who was

engaged in the performance of official duties at the

time of the offense, seven to 11 years;

(B) and the conviction is for nanufacturing
rel ated to net hanphet am ne under AS
11.171.020(a)(2)(A) or (B), seven to 11 years, if

(i) the manufacturing occurred in a buil ding
wi th reckless disregard that the buil ding was
used as a pernanent or tenporary honme or place of
| odgi ng for one or nore children under 18 or the
bui l ding was a place frequented by children; or

(ii) in the course of nmanufacturing or in
preparation for nmanufacturing the defendant
obt ai ned the assistance of one or nore children
under 18 or one or nore children were present;

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 23, 2005



(3) if the offense is a second felony conviction, 10
to 14 years;

(4) if the offense is a third felony conviction and

the defendant is not subject to sentencing under (I)
of this section, 15 to 20 years.

*Sec. 4. AS 12.55.125(d), as anended by section CCS SB 56, is
anended to read:

(d) Except as provided in (i) of this section, a defendant
convicted of a class B felony may be sentenced to a definite
term of inprisonment of not nore than 10 years, and shall be
sentenced to a definite term within the follow ng presunptive
ranges, subject to adjustnent as provided in AS 12.55.155 -
12.55. 175:

(1) if the offense is a first felony conviction and
does not involve circunstances described in (2) of this
subsection, one to three years; a defendant sentenced under this
paragraph may, if the court finds it appropriate, be granted a
suspended inposition of sentence under AS 12.55.085 if, as a
condition of probation under AS 12.55.086, the defendant is
required to serve an active term of inprisonment within the
range specified in this paragraph, unless the court finds that a
factor in mtigation under AS 12.55. 155 applies;

(2) if the offense is a first felony conviction,

(A) the defendant violated AS 11.41.130, and the
victimwas a child under 16 years of age, two
to four years;

(B) two to four years if the conviction is for

an attenpt, solicitation or conspiracy to manufacture

rel ated to net hanphet am ne under AS 11.31 and AS

11.171.020(a)(2)(A) or (B), and
(i) the attenpted manufacturing occurred, or
the solicited or conspired offense was to have
occurred, in a building with reckl ess di sregard
that the building was used as a pernanent or
tenporary hone or place of |odging for one or
nore chil dren under 18 or the buil ding was a
pl ace frequented by children; or
(ii) in the course of an attenpt to

manuf acture the def endant obtai ned the assi stance

of one or nore children under 18 or one or nore

children were present;
(3) if the offense is a second felony conviction,
four to seven years;

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 23, 2005



(4) if the offense is a third felony conviction, six
to ten years.

*Sec. 5. AS 12.55.185 is anended to add a new definition, to

read:

(18) “building,” in addition to its usual meaning, includes any
propel | ed vehi cl e or structure adopt ed for over ni ght
accommodation of persons or for carrying on business; when a
buil di ng consists of separate units, including apartnment units,
offices, or rented roons, each unit is considered a part of the
sanme bui |l di ng.

SENATOR FRENCH obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

MR. GUANELI explained the provisions in the current version of
SB 70. Sections 3,4, and 5 were a result of Alaska State
Troopers experiences wth nobile nethanphetam ne |aboratories
(meth labs). The main concern is the close proximty of children
to nobile neth labs. Convicting a person of two separate crines
for the same conduct introduces the concept of nerger where
courts will take two convictions and nerge them for the purpose
of sentencing.

SENATOR FRENCH clarified the separate crine is when a person
manuf actures in a building know ng that children are near.

8:53:44 AM

MR, GUANELI referred to a sentencing chart and offered an
explanation of the adjusted sentences. There would be an
addi ti onal penalty for manufacturing nethanphetam nes near
chil dren.

8:56:45 AM

MR. GUANELI advised the commttee that manufacturers have been
known to wuse children to assist them in the production of
met hanphet am nes.

8:58: 09 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Cuaneli if SB 70 addresses the
situation where the manufacturer’s friend brings children into
t he house.

MR. GUANELI said the intent of SB 70 addresses an overnight
situation. There was no thought as to children visiting.

8:59:45 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 23, 2005



SENATOR THERRI AULT asked whether the commttee could nodify the
| anguage.

CHAI R SEEKI NS agr eed.

SENATOR FRENCH said children do not spend the night in daycare
centers.

CHAIR SEEKINS suggested including the words “frequently
present”.

9: 00: 58 AM

MR GUANELI admitted he is not bothered by the notion of
“frequently present” as |anguage. He suggested it was anbi guous
and if necessary, a jury could decide.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked how long it takes to cause harmto a child
in the presence of the manufacturing of nethanphetam nes.

MR. GUANELI deferred the question to Sergeant TimBirt.

9:02: 38 AM

SERGEANT TI MOTHY BI RT, detective, Al aska State Troopers, advised
there are no studies to indicate a specific tine frane.
Vari ables include the size of the operation, how the chem cals
are stored, stages of operation, and l|location. Meth lab funes
are extrenely toxic.

9: 05: 02 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT comented there is an explosive nature as
wel | .

SENATOR FRENCH suggested adding |anguage regarding children
frequenting the area.

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS asked if SB 70 included children present
during manufacturing.

9:07: 38 AM

MR.  GUANELI suggested under Section 3, subparagraph (B) sub
subparagraph (i) after 18, add the phrase “place frequented by
chil dren”, and under Section 3, subpar agraph  (B) sub
subparagraph (ii) after 18, add “or one or nore children were
present”.

SENATOR FRENCH asked M. Guaneli if SB 70 covers using children
to purchase ingredients.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 23, 2005



9:10: 08 AM
MR. GUANELI advised the intent of the |anguage was broad enough
to include that scenario.

9:12:13 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT noved the conceptual anendnent to Amendnent
2. Hearing no objections, it was so ordered.

9:13: 14 AM

MR. GUANELI inforned the commttee SB 70 contained a separate
sentencing provision to address attenpted manufacturing,
solicitation to manufacturing and conspiracy to manufacture.

9:14: 27 AM

SENATOR GUESS asked M. GCuaneli whether there were any other
places in the Al aska statutes where they discuss using children
in the manufacturing or preparing of elicit drugs.

9:15:41 AM
MR. GUANELI responded this is the only place where children are
refl ected because it is the current problem

9:17: 18 AM
SENATOR QGUESS asked how the DOL would handle a case where a
person under 18 was forced to deliver illicit drugs.

SENATOR FRENCH offered it would be a defense of coercion or
dur ess.

MR. GUANELI agreed with Senator French. Wen an act is commtted
under duress, the |aw takes that into account. However, there is
a certain level of responsibility even children have to bear
when they are involved in selling drugs.

SENATOR GUESS commented the legislation would protect children
if they are being used to manufacture illegal drugs but not if
they are being used to deliver the drugs.

9:19: 32 AM

MR. GUANELI responded if a child is knowingly and wllingly
participating in the manufacturing of a controlled substance, it
is a prosecutable offense. SB 70 provides a neasure of
protection for children but depending on their culpability,
there coul d be consequences.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 23, 2005



CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Guaneli if he could conceive soneone
prosecuting an eight year old for involvenent in illegal drugs.

MR. GUANELI answered it would be dealt with in the juvenile
justice system The |law doesn’'t feel children that age have a
cul pabl e nmental thought process.

9:21:59 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS asked Sergeant Birt if he has seen situations
where little children have knowingly and willingly assisted in
t he manufacturing and selling of illicit drugs.

SGT. BI RT answer ed no.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked Sgt. Birt if he has seen the sane situation
Wi th teenagers.

SGT. BI RT answered yes.

CHAIR SEEKINS renarked his constituents were concerned with the
ease at which drug manufacturers neet bail.

9:24:13 AM

MR. GUANELI replied judges take into account a nunber of
ci rcunst ances including previous offenses and flight risks when
setting bail. The Legislature can set guidelines and hel p judges
consi der other requirenents.

9:26: 57 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked M. Guaneli about a controlled substance
schedul e bill that the Legislature passed 5 years ago.

MR. GUANELI said the DOL would |like to inpose tougher sentencing
when net hanphet am nes are invol ved.

CHAIR SEEKINS comented sone states allow no Dbail for
nmet hanphet am ne offenses. If it does not create a constitutiona
problem he would support an anmendnent to SB 70 that would
require an extrenely high cash bail.

9:28:19 AM

SENATOR FRENCH offered a judge woul d bal ance the strength of the
case. In a strong case the judge could set the bail high. In a
weak case the suspect could wal k.

9:29: 46 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 23, 2005



CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. Cuaneli if he had any objection to the
Legislature instituting a high cash bail for the second offense.

MR. GUANELI replied he sees nerit in the suggestion.

CHAI R SEEKINS announced the chair would entertain a conceptual
motion to add for a second arrest a mninmm of $250,000 cash
bai l .

SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to adopt the second conceptual anendnent
to Anendnent 2. There being no objection, the notion carried.

9:32: 01 AM

MR. GUANELI commented sone people could neet the high cash bai
and he would like the court to be able to inpose the other
restrictions that acconpany the offense.

CHAIR SEEKINS answered it was not the intent of the Legislature
to inpair the courts ability to inpose other restrictions.

9:33: 27 AM

MR.  DUNCAN SHACKELFOLD, head football coach, Chugiak High
School, testified in support of SB 70. He expressed concern
about the easy access youths have to steroids.

9:40: 14 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked M. @uaneli if the |list of anabolic steroids
on Page 4 is limting.

MR, GUANELI replied the courts have always said a |ist includes
but is not limted to. A list always hel ps due to pharmacol ogic
| anguage. Legally it is not necessary to add the additional

| anguage, “includes but is not limted to.”

9:42:10 AM

SENATOR FRENCH proposed an anendnent on Page 4; line 21 after
the word “includes” insert “but is not Ilimted to the
foll owi ng.” Hearing no objections, Arendnent 3 was adopt ed.

9:42:59 AM
M5. BARBARA BRI NK, director, Al aska Public Defenders, commented
on the first section of SB 70. She took issue with the phrase on
Page 1; line 14:

“...the death is a result that does not require a

cul pabl e nental state.”
She suggested SB 70 would seek to punish people who do not have
mental cul pability. She said:

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 23, 2005



The peopl e did not intentionally, know ngly,
recklessly, or negligently cause death. This is a huge
difference from the vast nmgjority of crines that we
punish. Usually a crine has to have three things: An
act that is illegal, a result, and a nental state
about that result. In this instance we’'re dramatically
changing what we wusually do and who we usually hold
responsi ble. A person may have had reason to believe
that any death would occur. It was clearly not
i ntended or expected and may not have even been able
to foresee such an outconme. Otentines they' ve nerely
shared a small amount of a substance that they
t hensel ves believed is used w thout any harm and j ust
for a social purpose.

She said the Al aska Supreme Court has |ooked unfavorably on

puni shi ng peopl e who don’t have a crimnal mnd.

9:45: 17 AM

M5. BRINK asserted to change a homicide offense to a strict
liability offense may not pass constitutional nuster under the
Al aska Supreme Court. In the United States, tobacco Kkills
approxi mat el y 450, 000 peopl e annual | y. Al cohol kills
approxi mately 80, 000 people and cocaine, heroin and aspirin each
kill about 2,000 people a year. Hol ding sonebody accountable for
a death somewhere down the drug line does not prove to be a
societal benefit. New Jersey has inposed strict liability for
drug deaths based on the fact that 50 percent of all crines were
drug related. It is a lucrative, organized crime issue in that
state. The Legislature attenpted to wuse strict liability to
attack the drug trade and hold kingpins responsible. However a
study ten years after showed that nost people who were arrested
for strict liability deaths were mnors with no priors, famly
menber, or small tinme users.

9:48: 09 AM
M5. BRINK said SB 70 will not address a huge problem in Al aska
and it nmay not be constitutional.

9:49: 16 AM

M5. BRINK added there is no proof that jail is effective in
hel pi ng people overcone drug addictions. She said therapeutic
courts are a valuable alternative to putting non-violent drug
of fenders into treatnent.

9:50: 22 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS cl osed public testinony.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 23, 2005



SENATOR THERRI AULT noved CSSB 70(JUD) from commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced a short recess at 9:51:19 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS reconvened the neeting at 10: 00: 02 AM

SB 129- WRONGFUL _FI LI NG OF LIS PENDENS

10: 00: 32 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS announced SB 129 to be up for consideration.

V5. DEBORAH GRUNDMANN, staff to Senator Huggins, introduced SB
129. She explained SB 129 is an act relating to the wongful
recording of a notice of pendency of an action relating to title
to or right to possession of real property. SB 129 seeks to
di scourage abusive filings of illegal lis pendens notices. The
recorders office has no way to prevent people from filing
i nproper |is pendens.

10: 02: 04 AM
SENATOR GUESS asked Ms. Ham |lton-Hesse why the state doesn't
requi re proof before people can place a lien on a property.

M5. RUTH HAM LTON- HESSE, assistant attorney general, Departnent
of Law (DOL) advised the DOL is attenpting to anend an existing
| aw that already provides crimnal class A m sdeneanor sanctions
for abusive process of recorder office filings.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if it would be better to have nore
generic | anguage.

M5. HAM LTON- HESSE answered the basis of SB 129 is that things
are being filed against property while the owner is not aware.

10: 04: 41 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS brought attention to Page 2; lines 11-12 and asked
if the consent should be in witing.

M5. HAM LTON HESSE acknow edged it was a reasonabl e suggestion
SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to adopt Anmendnent 1. On Page 2, line 12,
after the word “consent” insert “in witing.” There being no
obj ection, the notion carried.

SENATOR FRENCH asked Ms. Hamilton-Hesse to recite the proper
usage of a lis pendens.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 23, 2005



M5. HAM LTON- HESSE explained |is pendens is a notice filed with
a recorders office, which notifies the public there is a valid
pendi ng action agai nst a piece of real property.

SENATOR FRENCH asked why the notice is not served on the owner
of the property.

M5. HAM LTON- HESSE answered that is a recorders issue and the
DOL is not involved with their processes.

10: 06: 54 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved CSSB 129(JUD) from committee wth
i ndi vidual recommendations and attached fiscal notes. There
bei ng no objection, the notion carri ed.

10: 07: 35 AM

SB 126- AQUATI C FARM NG

10: 08: 23 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS announced SB 126 to be up for consideration.

MR TIM BARRY, staff to Senator Stedman, introduced SB 126.
Senator Stedman sponsored SB 126 as a result of a coalition
between the Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane (ADF&G, the
Sout heast Al aska Regional Dive Fisheries Association (SARDFA)
and the Al aska Shellfish G owers Association (ASGA). SB 126 is a
result of a conprom se agreenent between the groups who have
been working together for years to resolve |egal and nanagenent
i ssues. SB 126 anends the Aquatic Farm ng Act (AS 16.40.100-199)
to allow aquatic farnms to continue to operate in conpliance with
a recent Suprene Court deci sion.

10:10: 10 AM
Section 1 anends the Aquatic Farmng Act to allow shellfish
farmers to own, harvest and sell insignificant populations of

wild shellfish stocks on their aquatic farm sites. ADF&G is
conducting a comercial dive fishery on designated mariculture
sites to renove conmmercially significant population of wld
geoducks.

10: 11: 24 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked M. Barry if there are a significant
nunber of geoducks in Al aska.

MR. BARRY answered there is a thriving commercial dive fishery
in Southeast Alaska. The farns are on a specific spot on the
bottom of the ocean. The farming act gives farners the right to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- March 23, 2005



grown and harvest shellfish on a specific spot of wunderwater
| and.

10: 13: 38 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS commented wild free roamng animals, including
shell fish, belong to all the people of Alaska. Under established
law, title normally transfers at the point of harvest. SB 126
transfers ownership once people are granted agricultural rights.
He asked M. Barry if that was an accurate summary.

MR. BARRY agr eed.

10: 14: 56 AM
MR. DAVI D BEDFORD, deputy conmm ssioner, ADF&G also agreed with
Chair Seekins’ comments.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said SB 126 cleans up a past problem that has
been pestering the state for seven years.

10: 16: 21 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS comrented only the Legislature can transfer a
title prior to harvest.

SENATOR THERRI AULT advised there have been audits and
litigation. SB 126 wll clear up any confusion of farmng
rights.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the farns or plots are visibly marked
for the general public.

10:17: 26 AM

MR. ROGER PAINTER, vice president, Alaska Shellfish Gowers
Associ ation (AS&G), answered Senator French’s question. The
sites are required to be marked with visible buoys. The buoys
have the permt-holders name and permt identification.

SENATOR FRENCH i nquired on the size of a typical farm
MR. PAI NTER responded approximately 3-4 acres.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Painter where the farns reside in
relation to the shoreline.

MR. PAI NTER disclosed they were generally located with sone

protection from the weather, which could nmean along a shore or
in a cove.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- March 23, 2005



10: 18: 39 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if farns have onsite caretakers.

MR. PAI NTER responded the farns are in the starting phase. They
wi Il not have caretakers on-site at all tines.

SENATOR FRENCH asked whether the plots would cover a shore where
the public mght suddenly be restricted from clam di ggi ng.

MR PAINTER intimated there are inter-tidal geoduck farnms under
devel opment. Leases that farmers get from the state require
public access that would allow the public to harvest other
resources or to recreate so long as they are not disturbing the
geoduck crop or the farm equi pnent.

10: 21: 19 AM

SENATOR FRENCH expressed concern about public notification of a
farm on the beach. He asked M. Painter whether there is any
opposition to SB 126.

MR. PAI NTER cl ai ned there was no negative testinony so far. ASGA,
the United Fisherman of Al aska, and SARDFA support SB 126.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Painter who the two parties were in
the | awsuit.

MR. PAI NTER answered the Department of Fish and Gane and four or
five farners.

10: 22: 59 AM
SENATOR HUGE NS inquired as to the region in which geoducks are
f ound.

MR. PAI NTER answered primarily Southeast Al aska.

10: 23: 23 AM

MR.  LANCE NELSON, assistant attorney general, testified in
support of SB 126. The division of natural resources section of
the AGs office in Anchorage believes SB 126 establishes a
framework for a fair permtting system SB 126 is an attenpt to
address the issues raised in both the Superior Court and the
Al aska Suprene Court decisions in the Al aska Trademark Shellfish
case.

10: 25: 39 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 23, 2005



CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. Nelson if he believes the Legislature is
operating in the best of public interest if they were to pass SB
126.

MR. NELSON said it was a good approach to solving the issues.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what would happen in a case where a
permt is issued to a location where it is later determned to
be a significant population of wld stock.

MR. BEDFORD advised ADF&G has rescinded sections of permts
before. The ADF&G has also denied permts due to significant
popul ations of wild shellfish stocks. ADF&G has not yet adopted
regul ations that clearly define what a significant population
is. Should SB 126 pass, ADF&G will put into place regul ations
that give clear definition so that the industry will know their
limtations and so the departnent will have standards by which
to judge applications.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Bedford if they are prepared to
write the regul ations.

MR. BEDFORD advised a group including representatives from both
sides of the industry have been working on the regulations for
sone time. The approach is to place a maximum limt on the
anmount of pounds of wld stock geoducks on a farm site. The
group wll also take into account the density of geoduck
popul ation and the location of other geoduck commerci al
fisheries.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Bedford if the intent is to get farners
to farm on non-productive | and.

10: 29: 28 AM

MR. BEDFORD responded not exactly. The court clearly informnmed
ADF&G to focus on farm ng areas that had sonme geoduck presence
but not significant anmounts.

10: 29: 53 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS commented the Legislature has yet to give ADF&G
the authority to do that.

MR. BEDFORD nentioned the court said ADF&G is the expert agency
that would be best suited to define significant popul ations.
Presently ADF&G has no ability to transfer titles to farnmers.

10: 30: 21 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 23, 2005



SENATOR HUGGE NS asked whether a recreational diver would have
access to a conmercial fishery area of geoducks.

MR. PAI NTER responded comrercial fishing areas are open to sport
fishing.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked M. Painter whether commercial fishernen
and recreational divers would come to a dispute over a fishing
ar ea.

MR. PAI NTER answered he could not envision that situation. Mbost
recreationally harvested geoducks are taken by comerci al
di vers.

10: 32: 20 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT pointed to Section 5 of SB 126 and asked M.
Bedford why ADF&G would want to keep fishery records
confidential.

MR. BEDFORD expl ai ned for reasons of private business practices.
ADF&G w Il produce an annual report for the public. Private
enterprises should have confidentiality for their business
records.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Bedford how long it takes for a
geoduck to reach harvestabl e size.

MR. BEDFORD answered 5-7 vyears. The industry has not been
growi ng | ong enough to establish an exact nunber.

10: 34: 12 AM
SENATOR FRENCH pointed out a technicality in Section 6 on line
24. The word mean shoul d be neans.

CHAIR SEEKINS clarified ADF&G would protect individual aquatic
farmsites records but not the accunul ati ve area record.

VMR. BEDFORD agr eed.

CHAI R SEEKI NS suggested the | anguage in Section 5 is unclear.

MR. BEDFORD responded the drafters should be queried regarding
Section 5. He believes the |language is parallel to the |anguage

they have for confidentiality of other records.

MR. NELSON detailed Section 5; Paragraph (4) refers to wld
stocks. It would not apply to accunulative harvest of farned

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 23, 2005



stocks. Section 5 wuld not make confidential accunul ated
reports prepared fromindividual subm ssions by ADF&G

10: 37: 51 AM
M5. JULIE DECKER, nenber, SARDFA, testified in support of SB
126.

MR. PAUL FUHS, | obbyist, testified in support of SB 126.

10: 39: 20 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved SB 126 from conmmttee wth individual
recommendations and attached fiscal note(s). There being no
obj ection, the notion carried.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair Seekins adjourned the neeting at 10:42:01 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- March 23, 2005



